
4/13/2023 8:10 PM 
 

 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

 
A MEETING OF THE WATERLOO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - AGENDA 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and to the news media, that a public 
meeting will be held to consider the following: 
 
Date:  April 18, 2023 
Time:  6:00 p.m.  
Location: Municipal Building, 136 North Monroe Street  
 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL 
 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: March 16, 2023 
 
3) UPDATES & REPORTS 

a) Non-Metro Connections Update 
b) Financial Reports Tax Incremental Finance Districts 2, 3 & 4, and Fund 600 
c) Blight Blue and Whitelist 
d) Business Association Liaison Report, (contact undetermined) 
e) School District Liaison (contact undetermined)  

 
4) OLD BUSINESS 
 
5) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Downtown Master Plan – Action Plan 
b) Recommendation from Council to review Façade grant approval procedure. 
c) Discussion regarding land for sale.  [NOTE: The CDA may meet in closed session per Wis. Stat. 19.85 

(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 
session. Upon concluding a closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session. 

 
 

6) CITIZEN INPUT, FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Annual Calendar  

 
7) ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
Jeanne Ritter, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
Community Development Authority: Soter, Petts, C. Kuhl, A. Kuhl, Hudson, O’Connell, Zimmermann, and School District Superintendent Brian 
Henning as non-voting School District liaison  Posted, Mailed and E-mailed: 04/14/2023.  

 
Please note it is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may attend the above meeting(s) to gather 
information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noted. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the 
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s office at the above 
location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


Page 1 of 1  

WATERLOO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY -- MEETING MINUTES: March 21, 2023 
Digital audio files are archived with these written minutes additionally serving as the official record.  

 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL AND CALL TO ORDER. CDA Chair O’Connell called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Members present: C. Kuhl, A. Kuhl, O’Connell, Soter, Hudson and Petts.  Remote: none Absent: Sharpe and the non-voting 
member from School District and Business Association.  Others in Attendance or remote: Everett Butzine, Steve Parker, Maureen 
Giese, Don Nell, Fran Gartner, Tim Thomas and Clerk Ritter. 

 
2. MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: With changes. MOTION: With changes Soter absent A.Kuhl present [A. Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE: 

Motion carried.   
 

3. UPDATES & REPORTS.  
 
Motion to move 3a. to after 5 e.  Motion [Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   

a. Non-Metro Connections – reviewed March update 
b. Financial Reports Tax Incremental Finance Districts 2, 3 & 4, and Fund 600. 
c. Blight Blue & White list  
d. Business Association Liaison Report. none 
e. School District Liaison. none 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS - none  

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Waterloo Business Association rental of Maunesha Business Center – Steve Parker spoke on behalf of the WBA.  They 
would like to rent business center up to 10 days a month for $100 a month. Will submit agreement. Motion 
[C.Kuhl/O’Connell] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  

b. Fran Gartner pop-up rental of Manuesha Business Center. Fran would like to rent business center 3 days every other 
month for her pop-up stain-glass retail business.  Charge would be $50 for the month. Motion [O’Connell/A. Kuhl] VOICE 
VOTE: Motion carried.  

c. Downtown Development Plan Review. Downtown Master plan is currently a concept to work off of. Butzine will be 
presenting an action plan to the CDA next month so steps can be taken to implement plan. 

d. Offer to Purchase One Acre 333 Portland Road by RTG Enterprise LLC Committee to give Griffin a 90 day freeze to work 
out details of purchase.  Motion [Petts/O’Connell] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   

e. Recommendation from Council to review Façade grant approval procedure. Committee would like to see other 
communities and how they process façade grants at next meeting.   

 
 

6. CITIZEN INPUT, FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS   
a. Annual Calendar 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT. MOTION: [C. Kuhl/A. Kuhl] VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. Time: 7:19 pm. 

 
 

Attest: 
 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 



info@non-mc.com 329 W 3rd St., Fox Lake, WI 53933 920-203-3859

April 16, 2023

Community Development Authority
136 North Monroe St.
Waterloo, WI 53594

RE: April Update

CDA Board,

I have partook in many key meetings and work over the past month, including:

 Jefferson County Economic Development Consortium
o Monthly JCEDC Board meeting Vice Chair
o ThriveED Executive Committee
o Interview panel member for Community Development Director position

 333 Portland Rd.

 Project Forward

 Dempsey Property

 Developer contacts

 2 BRE visits

 Downtown Master Plan

Please let me know if there are any additional areas of focus you would like me to start on.

_______________________
Everett Butzine
Owner/Managing Member
Non-Metro Connections



CITY OF WATERLOO
BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31, 2023

412-TIF DISTRICT 2 FUND

ASSETS

412-11100 TREASURER'S CASH 514,766.23

412-15800 DUE FROM AGENCY FUND TAXES (         36,104.16)

TOTAL ASSETS 478,662.07

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

412-26100 DEFERRED REVENUE (         36,104.04)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (         36,104.04)

FUND EQUITY

412-34300 FUND BALANCE 544,175.56

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - YTD (         29,409.45)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 514,766.11

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 478,662.07



CITY OF WATERLOO
BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31, 2023

413-TIF DISTRICT 3 FUND

ASSETS

413-11100 TREASURER'S CASH 119,653.70

413-15800 DUE FROM AGENCY FUND TAXES (         52,149.57)

TOTAL ASSETS 67,504.13

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

413-26100 DEFERRED REVENUE (         52,149.69)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (         52,149.69)

FUND EQUITY

413-34300 FUND BALANCE 68,445.42

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - YTD 51,208.40

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 119,653.82

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 67,504.13



CITY OF WATERLOO
BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31, 2023

414-TIF DISTRICT 4 FUND

ASSETS

414-11100 TREASURER'S CASH 99,197.24

414-15800 DUE FROM AGENCY FUND TAXES (         36,235.70)

TOTAL ASSETS 62,961.54

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

414-26100 DEFERRED REVENUE (         36,235.70)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (         36,235.70)

FUND EQUITY

414-34300 FUND BALANCE 76,292.22

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - YTD 22,905.02

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 99,197.24

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 62,961.54



TID 5 EXPENSES - PAID FROM TID 2

DATE OF INVOICE VENDOR DESCRIPTION PAID DATE OF INVOICE NOTES AMOUNT 0 CHECK # *

December 31 2022 APG PF SW TID 5 W/ MAP January 24 2023 $457.65 #55888

January 17 2023
NON-METRO CONNECTIONS
LLC

TID 5 CREATION January 24 2023 RESOLUTION #2022-34 $5,000.00 #55597

January 31 2023 APG PF SW TID 5 W/ MAP February 10 2023 $457.65 #55656

February 8 2023
NON-METRO CONNECTIONS
LLC

TID 5 CREATION February 21 2023 $9,969.00 #55716

February 28 2023 APG PF SW
TID 5-NOTICE OF
MEETING

March 7 2023 $31.75 #55753

March 21 2023
ST OF WI-DEPT OF
REVENUE

TID CREATION MARCH 21 2023 NEW TID CREATION $1,000.00 EFT

March 22 2023
NON-METRO CONNECTIONS
LLC

TID 5 CREATION March 24 2023 $8,000.00 #55834

March 23 2023 AXLEY BRYNELSON LLP
TID 5 REVIEW PROJ
PLAN

March 30 2023 INV #925939 $167.50 #55850

March 23 2023 AXLEY BRYNELSON LLP TID 5 LEGAL OPINION March 30 2023 INV #925937 $634.50 #55850

$25,718.05



Street Property # Open Date Owner of Property

Who

Complained/follow

up with

Desired

Outcome

Link to

Ordinance
Notes Action

Who is

following up

NMC Time

spent

Adam St 380 12.01.2022/03.02.2023 Jeanette Petts DPW/PD Junks & Unregistered Vehicles Verbal warning PD 0

Beech Rd 126 03.02.2023 Jennifer Kick DPW/PD Tree DPW 0

Bradford Drive 420 03.02.2023 James Kuhlow DPW/PD Trees DPW 0

Chestnut St 1302 03.02.2023 Alfonso Chairez DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

Cleveland 527 03.02.2023 Robert Gingles DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

Crestview 565 2.15.2023/03.02.2023 565 Crestview LLC Mayor/DPW/PD Junk PD 0

Edison St 443 03.02.2023 Robert Wollin DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

E Madison St 130 03.02.2023 Mark Hurley DPW/PD Structure damage SB 0

E Madison St 466 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Theodore Stenberg DPW/PD Building SB 0

E Madison St 506 03.02.2023 Steven Brey DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

E Madison St 1109 03.02.2023 Cass Gilbertson DPW/PD Tree DPW 0

Harrison 505 03.02.2023 Bryan Rowin DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

Herron Court 735 03.02.2023 Jason Meyer DPW/PD Trailer PD 0

Herron Drive 815 03.02.2023 Dan Smith DPW/PD Car/boat PD 0

Herron Drive 915 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Pascal Assine DPW/PD Boat & car PD 0

Hiawatha 840 03.02.2023 Andrea Lendborg DPW/PD Trees DPW 0

Indian Hills 403 03.02.2023 Ronald Klug DPW/PD Trailer PD 0

Indian Hills 605 03.02.2023 Matthew Rennebohm DPW/PD Trailer PD 0

Jackson 595 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Shyla Davis DPW/PD Tree DPW 0

Jefferson 144 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Patricia Schickert DPW/PD Junk/Tree PD 0

Knowlton St 334 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Bradley Bauer DPW/PD House Repair SB 0

Knowlton St 530 03.02.2023 Bryon Bergeron DPW/PD Junk PD 0

Lum 920 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Kenneth Frandle DPW/PD Junk PD 0

Lum 1085 03.02.2023 Susan Hein DPW/PD Building Permit SB 0

Mill St 140 03.02.2023 John Iwanski DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

Mill St 173 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Debra Hottinger DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

Mill St 257 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Juan Nava DPW/PD Brush DPW 0

N Monroe 508 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 508 N Monroe LLC DPW/PD Junk PD 0

N Monroe 608 03.02.2023 Chad Chadwick DPW/PD Trailer PD 0

Oak 1332 03.02.2023 Lorna Bredehorn DPW/PD Trailer/vehicle PD 0

Pierce 451 03.02.2023 Paul Marty DPW/PD Vehicles PD 0

Portland Rd 208 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Gordon Yelk DPW/PD Junk PD 0

Portland Rd 230 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 James Steindorf DPW/PD Junk PD 0

Van Buren 201 03.02.2023 Brian Braunschweig DPW/PD Vehicle PD 0

W Madison St 662 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Chad Decaluwe DPW/PD Junk PD 0

W Madison St 213 1.12.2023 Bill Hart DPW/PD Junk
Certified Letter sent

by PD on 1/11/2023
PD

Washington 164 03.02.2023 Daniel Sokolowski DPW/PD Tree DPW 0

Washington 306 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 Jeffrey Grotjahn DPW/PD Building PD 0

Washington 516 1.12.2023/03.02.2023 James Marshall DPW/PD Junk PD 0

ALL DEPARTMENT BLIGHT LIST updated 03.02.2023



Downtown Master Plan Education

Waterloo Downtown Revolving Loan Fund (WDRLF)

 Gap financing

 Self-replenishing pool of money
o Utilizing interest and principal payments of old loans to issue new ones

 Loans at market or otherwise competitive and attractive rates

 Potential for grants

 Typical uses
o Operating capital
o Acquisition of land and buildings
o New construction
o Façade and building renovation
o Landscape and property improvements
o Machinery and equipment

 Our own unique program to the City of Waterloo

Waterloo Business Improvement District (WBID)

 A tool that a municipality can implement, that creates a geographic area within the
municipality to be specially assessed

o Additional tax revenue proceeds go to fund an operational plan (set of activities)
developed by the Business Improvement District members

 SS 66.1109 (Business Improvement Districts)

 SS 66.0701, 66.0703, 66.0705 & 66.0709 (Special Assessments)

 An area within a municipality consisting of contiguous parcels Geographic designated
area

Waterloo Main Street Community
 What sets Main Street America™ apart is the powerful network: the unique combination

of grassroots dedication to comprehensively improving quality of life at the local level,
integral support and expertise provided by Coordinating Programs at the city, county,
and state level, and leadership and direction from Main Street America.

Main Street America is also a special mark of distinction. It is a seal, recognizing that
participating programs, organizations, and communities are part of a national
movement with a proven track record for celebrating community character, preserving
local history, and generating impressive economic returns.



DOWNTOWNS AND  

HISTORIC COMMERCIAL 

DISTRICTS PLAY AN  

IMPORTANT ROLE IN OUR 

COMMUNITIES AND IN 

WISCONSIN’S OVERALL 

ECONOMY.

WEDC.ORG

 S U C C E S S F U L  

C O M M E R C I A L  D I S T R I C T S 

D O N ’ T  J U S T  H A P P E N .

Photos courtesy of Main Street Marshfield, 
Sturgeon Bay Visitor Center, and Eagle River 

Revitalization Program.

DOWNTOWN  
DEVELOPMENT  

PROGRAMS
ACHIEVING YOUR VISION FOR REVITALIZATION

MAIN STREET | CONNECT COMMUNITIES

They need to be planned and nurtured.  
Their prosperity requires interest and action 
from many stakeholders who share a vision for 
the community. 

WEDC’s downtown development programs 
are designed to help communities identify 
necessary initiatives, stakeholders and 
resources to make their downtown or urban 
commercial district a more vibrant and 
engaging place to live, work and play. 

Our programs are designed around The Main 
Street Approach®, which provides a holistic 
framework for downtown revitalization focused 
on four key points: 

Organization establishes consensus and 
cooperation by building partnerships among 
the various groups that have a stake in the 
commercial district. 

Design works to create a safe, inviting 
environment for shoppers, workers and visitors 
while preserving a place’s historic character. 

Economic Vitality works to build a commercial 
district that responds to the needs of today’s 
consumers while promoting economically 
profitable businesses and properties. 

Promotion communicates unique 
characteristics, cultural traditions and 
community pride to create a positive image and 
attract interest in and traffic to your district.



APPLICATION INFORMATION
MAIN STREET
Applicants to the Wisconsin Main Street 
program must be organizations focused 
on downtown or urban commercial district 
issues. The organization must have paid staff 
and an adequate budget for carrying out 
activities ($40,000 in communities under 
5,000 or $70,000 in larger communities). 

Applications are accepted annually in the 
spring, and interviews will be held with 
eligible applicants to determine organization 
readiness. Up to 3 new communities 
will be admitted to the program
in the following fiscal year. 

Participating organizations must complete 
regular reporting and meet annual 
attendance requirements to remain in the 
Wisconsin Main Street Program. 

CONNECT COMMUNITIES
Applicants for Connect Communities 
program may be any organization or 
governmental entity interested in pursuing 
revitalization activities at the local level. 

Applications are accepted twice annually in  
the spring and fall, and up to 20 new 
communities will be admitted to the program 
in each fiscal year. 

Participating organizations must complete 
annual reporting and meet annual 
attendance requirements to remain in 
the Connect Communities program.

PROGRAMS 
 
MAIN STREET 
The Wisconsin Main Street program was 
created in 1987, and is affiliated with the National 
Main Street Center. The Main Street AmericaTM 
program is designed to provide technical support 
and training for organizations dedicated to 
downtown or commercial corridor revitalization 
activities. The program is flexible in its ability to 
accommodate a wide range of community sizes 
and situations. Successful programs will have 
established a strong local base of support which 
enables them to undertake a broad spectrum 
of initiatives specifically designed to foster local 
success. 
 
 
CONNECT COMMUNITIES
Created in 2013, the Connect Communities 
program is designed to provide training and 
networking for communities or organizations 
working on revitalization topics. Connect 
Communities is a great option for communities 
beginning new revitalization efforts, those 
looking to provide additional resources to 
support local commercial district businesses and 
property owners, and individuals interested in 
networking with other professionals and gaining 
useful information on strategies and techniques 
to address common revitalization challenges.

RESOURCES AND SERVICES 
Participants in both the Wisconsin Main 
Street and Connect Community Programs 
enjoy access to a wide variety of educational 
resources, training and tools designed 
to further local revitalization initiatives, 
including:  

• Regional workshops on pertinent topics

• Annual conference programming

• Regular webinars

• Case studies and best practices

• Regional networking events

• Manager/board orientation/training

• Toolkits on relevant topics such as  
 market analysis, volunteer management,  
 event production, design guidelines,  
 marketing, etc. 

WISCONSIN MAIN STREET communities 
receive intensive technical assistance from 
WEDC’s downtown development staff and 
consultants to provide tailored support, 
design assistance and topical solutions for 
local challenges as well as targeted support 
for local businesses and property owners. 

OUTCOMES
Downtown development is not a one-size-
fits-all endeavor, and local outcomes are as 
unique as the communities they represent. 
Ranging in size from 700 to 600,000 
residents, each program has made strides in 
achieving local goals. Participants commonly 
report increased storefront occupancy, 
improved environment and aesthetics, 
increased property values and an expanded 
customer base, among other outcomes.



NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS, BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
DISTRICTS

KARL GREEN

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EDUCATION PROGRAM MANAGER

DIVISION OF EXTENSION – UW MADISON



TODAY WE WILL
REVIEW STATE
STATUTES COVERING
NID’S, BID’S &
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
DISTRICTS

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)

SS 66.1110 (Neighborhood

Improvement Districts)

SS 66.0701, 66.0703, 66.0705

& 66.0709 (Special

Assessments)



TODAY WE WILL NOT

• Provide all potential aspects

of the NID, BID & Special

Assessment Districts

• Provide legal advice, City

must seek professional legal

counsel



NEIGHBORHOOD
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

In Summary

 A Neighborhood Improvement District means :

 “An area within a municipality consisting of nearby, but not necessarily
contiguous parcels, at least some of which are used for residential purposes
and are subject to general real estate taxes…”

 Geographic designated area

 Does not need to be contiguous

 Must include residential properties (diff. from BID)

 Residential property must have representation (real property used exclusively
for less than 8 residential units may not be specially assessed for purposes of
the NID (66.1110(7))

 Requires an initial operating plan, an appointed Board, and annual reporting of
current status, spending revenues, etc.

 Boundaries can be annexed, but must follow process similar to creation of NID

 All special assessments from a NID and all other appropriations received for the
benefit of the NID shall be placed in segregated account in the municipal
treasury

 Eligible activities for NID’s are not defined by state statutes, nor are they limited
by statutes

 Unwritten rule - Expenditures must be supported by members

SS 66.1110 (Neighborhood

Improvement Districts)



NEIGHBORHOOD
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

In Order to Create:

 66.1110 (3)

 A municipality may create a NID and adopt its operating plan IF all of the
following conditions have been met:

1. An owner of real property subject to general property real estate taxes and
located within the proposed NID has petitioned the municipality for creation of a
NID

2. The Planning Commission (see def.) has designated a proposed neighborhood
improvement district and adopted its proposed initial operating plan

3. Hold public hearing at least 30 days before the creation of the NID and adoption
of the initial operating plan,

 Sent notice by certified mail to all owners of real property within the proposed NID
indicating

 Boundaries of the proposed NID

 Indicate copy of proposed operating plan is available through planning commission

4. Within 30 days following the hearing no protests from

 Owners representing >40% of valuation of NID, based on Operating Plan specified
valuation method, or

 Owners representing >40% of assessed valuation of NID

5. City Council votes to approve proposed initial operating plan, with Class 2
notices posted and sent by cert. mail to all owners of real property within NID

SS 66.1110 (Neighborhood

Improvement Districts)



NEIGHBORHOOD
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

Operating Plan

 66.1110(2)(a-f)

 shall contain (at least) all of the following:

1. The special assessment method applicable to the NID

 Ex. Based on valuation, sq. ft of land, lineal feet of street, etc.

2. The kind, number and location of all proposed expenditures within the
NID

3. Description of the method of financing all estimated expenditures and
the time when related costs will be incurred

4. Description of how the NID promotes the orderly development of the
City, and relation to City Master (Comp.) plan

5. A statement whether the City Council authorizes the NID Board to own
real property

 If allowed, description of real property to be owned

 Purpose of ownership

 Statement regarding to whom real property will be transferred if NID is
terminated

6. Legal opinion that above items #1-#5 have been met

 Operating plan considered/updated annually

SS 66.1110 (Neighborhood

Improvement Districts)



NEIGHBORHOOD
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

Board Formation

 66.1110 (4)(a)

 If the City Council adopts the operating plan, then it shall
determine the size of the board:

 Board shall consist of minimum 5 members

 All board members shall own/occupy real property in the NID

 # of board members must represent both commercial & residential
property

 As closely as possible, in same proportion as aggregate value to total value in
NID

 Ex. 60% property commercial

40% property residential

Minimum 3 commercial property owners/occupants, 2 residential
property owners/occupants

 Board members serve 1-year terms, appointed by City Council

 Board membership encouraged to be expanded as properties
developed (representative)

SS 66.1110 (Neighborhood

Improvement Districts)



BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

 A Business Improvement
District means :

 “An area within a
municipality consisting of
contiguous parcels

 May include railroad right of
ways, rivers, or highways
continuously bounded by
the parcels on at least one
side

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)



BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

In Summary

 A Business Improvement District means :

 An area within a municipality consisting of contiguous parcels
Geographic designated area

 Does need to be contiguous, but can jump boundaries such as railroad ROW’s,
rivers, highways, etc.

 Requires an initial operating plan, an appointed Board, and annual
reporting of current status, spending revenues, etc.

 Boundaries can be annexed, but must follow process similar to creation
of BID

 Real Property used exclusively for residential purposes may not be
specially assessed for BID purposes

 BID’s may be converted to NID’s if petitioned by an owner of taxable real
property used exclusively for residential (>8 units)

 Eligible activities for BID’s are not defined by state statutes, nor are they
limited by statutes

 Unwritten rule - Expenditures must be supported by members

 Examples: Graffiti removal, Trash & clean up services, landscaping, public
service ambassadors, to name a few….

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)



BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

In Order to Create:

 66.1109(2)

 A municipality may create a BID and adopt its operating plan IF all of the
following conditions have been met:

1. An owner of real property used for commercial purposes and located in the
proposed BID has petitioned the municipality for creation of a BID

2. The Planning Commission (see def.) has designated a proposed neighborhood
improvement district and adopted its proposed initial operating plan

3. Hold public hearing at least 30 days before the creation of the BID and adoption
of the initial operating plan, published as a class 2 notice

 Before publication, send notice by certified mail to all owners of real property
within the proposed BID indicating

 Boundaries of the proposed BID

 A copy of proposed operating plan

 Detailed map showing the proposed BID boundaries

4. Within 30 days following the hearing no protests from

 Owners representing >40% of valuation of BID, based on Operating Plan specified
valuation method, or

 Owners representing >40% of assessed valuation of BID

5. City Council votes to approve proposed initial operating plan

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)



BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

Operating Plan

 66.1109(1)(F)(1-5)

 The plan adopted/amended for the development,
redevelopment, maintenance, operation & promotion of a BID
including all of the following:

1. The special assessment method applicable to the BID

 Specifically whether real property used exclusively for manufacturing
purposes will be specially assessed

2. The kind, number and location of all proposed expenditures within
the BID

3. Description of the method of financing all estimated expenditures
and the time

4. Description of how the BID promotes the orderly development of
the City, including relation to City Master (Comp.) plan

5. Legal opinion that above items #1-#4 have been met

 Operating plan considered/updated annually

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)



BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

Board Formation

 66.1109 (3)

 The Chief Elected Officer shall appoint members to the BID Board
to implement the operating plan, confirmed by Legislative body:

 Board shall consist of minimum 5 members

 A majority of board members shall own/occupy real property in the BID

 Board members serve 1-year terms, but may be consecutive

 Board membership encouraged to be expanded as properties
developed (representative)

 Changes to the operating plan shall be approved by the City
Council

 Board shall prepare (and make available to the public) annual
reports describing the current status of the BID, Exp. & Rev, and

 Certified Audit if cash balance exceeded $300,000* (at any point)

 Reviewed financial statement if under $300,000*

 Must be in segregated account in municipal treasury

*After 2018, $300,000 x annual CPI

SS 66.1109 (Business

Improvement Districts)



SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS

In Summary

 1st class cities may pass Special Assessments by 2

Resolutions of its governing body (City Council)

 Special Assessments better option for infrastructure

improvements, not services that improve conditions

 Preliminary Resolution shall describe:

 City’s intent to exercise special assessment for a stated municipal
purpose

 The limits of the proposed assessment district

 The number of installments in which special assessments may be
paid (may be determined during public hearing)

 Direct proper municipal officer or employee to make a “Report”
on the proposal

SS 66.0701 – 66.0709



SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS

Report shall include:

 Preliminary or final plans & specifications

 An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed work or

improvement

 Costs may include: direct/indirect costs, interest on bonds/notes
issued, reasonable administrative charges of the city, architectural,
engineering or legal services, any other costs reasonably attributed to
the proposed work or improvement

 An estimate, as to each parcel/property affected of:

1. The assessment of benefits to be levied

2. Damages to be awarded for property taken or damaged

3. The net amount of benefits over damages, or vice versa

 A copy of the completed report shall be filed with the

municipal clerk for public inspection

SS 66.0701 – 66.0709



SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS

Public Notification & Hearing shall include:

 Public Notice stating:

 Nature of the proposed work

 General boundary lines of the proposed assessment district

 Where & when the report can be inspected

 Where & when governing body will meet to receive input from public

 Mailed to “every interested party”

 Class 1 notice, at least 10 days, but no longer than 40 days from the
public hearing event

 After the public hearing, the governing body may approve,
disapprove, or modify report

 Final resolution needs to be passed directing the work to be

carried out as finalized after public hearing.

SS 66.0701 – 66.0709



FINAL THOUGHTS

 Timing of BID or NID may be difficult with only one property owner (RDA) and no/minimal assessed value

 Transfer of ownership could challenge BID and NID longevity

 Significant amount of administrative work required to operate & maintain the BID/NID activities, including

 Accounting of expenses, updating operating plan annually, annual reporting, meeting requirements, etc.

 Special Assessment District could possibly help with isolated storm sewer expenses

 Any special taxation district will take City resources and work setting structure up, potentially supporting long term…



QUESTIONS?



CONTACT INFO:
KARL GREEN
LOCAL GOVERNMENT EDUCATION
PROGRAM MANAGER
UW MADISON
DIVISION OF EXTENSION
KARL.GREEN@WISC.EDU
608-785-9763



































































Preferred meeting night: 3'd Tuesday of month at 6:00 pm

JANUARY

- evaluate CDA Progress Measures
- finalize pr¡or year Annual Report

FEBRUARY

- notify Mayor of member reappointment interest
- align/modify CDA Progress Measures as needed
- subm¡t Annual Report to City Council

MARCH

- not¡fy Mayor of member reappointment interest
- Push to closeout incomplete prior year items

APRIL

- Mayoral appointments
- Push to closeout incomplete prior year items

MAY
- CDA election of Chair and Vice Chair
- evaluate CDA Progress Measures

JUNE

- start future year budget submittal
- review of tax increment finance district progress

JULY

- review of tax increment finance district progress
- future year budget planning
- align CDA Progress Measures with budget planning
- reaffirm or jett¡son all active programs and projects

AUGUST

- future year budget submittal to Finance, lnsurance & Personnel Committee, including tax incremental finance funds

SEPTEMBER

- evaluate CDA Progress Measures

OCTOBER

- !trength, weaknesses opportunities & !hreats (SWOT) exercise

NOVEMBER

- commun¡ty outreach

DECEMBER

- community outreach
- review staff draft, Annual Report to City
- update calendar

Council

Waterloo Community Development Authority -- Annual Calendar

Page 1 of 1

HTTPS/MATERL0OWI.SHAREP0INT.COM/SITES/FILESHARËS/ÐATA/C0MMON/COMMUNITY development audìorlty/annual calendar/community development authority annual
calendar.docx
211112021 2:59 PM


